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W o rk  to en larg e  St. A n d re w ’s C a th e d ra l has s ta rte d . A  b a rrica d e  large enough to a llo w  
w o rkm en  room  in w h ich  to w o rk  on th e  60-foot ex ten sion  to  th e  fr o n t  o f th e  ch urch  has 
been pu t up, as shown in th e  above p ic tu re . T h e  e n tire  facad e w ill  be a sta ined  glass 
w in d o w  24 fe e t w ide and 50 fe e t h igh. T h re e  m onkeypod tre e  stum ps near th e  C a th ed ra l 
w e re  rem oved to  m ake w a y  fo r  th e  ad d itio n s . T h e y  le ft enorm ous holes o f tw e n ty  fe e t 
in d ia m e te r  fo r  each tre e . T ru n k s  and lim bs  of th e  trees , a ll m ore th an  100 ye ars  old, 
w e re  m ade in to  bowls, p la tes  and crosses and sold as m em entos to m em bers and fr ien d s  
fo r  th e  bu ild ing  fu nd .



The Birth of a Territory and 
The Birth of a Church
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T h e  Rev. R ich ard  B ake r poses a f te r  serv ice  w ith  th e  mem  
bers o f a B ap tism al p a rty  a f te r  th e  f irs t  C h ris te n in g  in the 
N im itz  H il l  C hapel. L e ft to r ig h t are  M r. P o rte r  Lewis  
W a rd e n ; th e  G odparents , M r. and M rs . Ed D ritsch e  with 
the tw o  oldest L ew is  boys, E van and D av id , w h ile  Mrs 
L ew is  holds th e  n e w ly  baptized  ch ild , P au l.

T h e  Rev. R ich ard 1 H . B ake r, A gana, G uam  dicusses location  
of a p e rm an en t s ite  fo r  th e  C hurch w ith  his co m m itteem en .

Guam is the youngest of American territories. It 
is also the location of the youngest of our overseas 
missions.

The island of Guam was incorporated into the 
United States through the Organic Act of August, 1950. 
It represents a vital, dynamic example of democracy 
in its earliest stages. The island also is increasingly 
a valuable center of defense, communication, com­
merce and transportation. Until August, 1957, it was 
the only American territory without an organized 
Episcopal Church.

As a result of the vision of the Bishop and the 
loyalty of Episcopal Navy Chaplains who have been 
stationed On Guam almost continuously before and 
since the second World War, the work of the Episcopal 
Church on Guam has now begun. In August of this 
year the Rev. Richard H. Baker and his family arrived 
on Guam to begin the organization of our newest 
mission.

The first service of the mission was held August 
11th. The Church was loaned the facilities of a Navy 
Chapel on Nimitz Hill. Since then Sunday services 
have been held regularly. Recently an afternoon serv­
ice was introduced at Andersen Air Force Base while 
a mid-week service is held at the U.S. Navy Hospital.

The Church on Guam, the Church of St. John the 
Divine, serves a widespread congregation of both mili­
tary and civilian population. On the northern tip of 
the island there is a large Air Force Base while towards 
the center and southern end there are several Navy  
installations including the large Naval Station at

Apra Harbor. The center of the civilian population 
is in and about the capital city, Agana.

A weekly bulletin “The Episcopalian” is pub­
lished by the Vicar and a staff.

Several parish organizations have already been 
organized. They include an acolyte guild, altar guild, 
a chapter of the Woman’s Auxiliary, and, of course, 
the Bishop’s Committee. The membership of the lat­
ter consists of Mr. Carroll Lewis, Warden; Mr. John 
Chick, Clerk; Mr. Arbis Shipley, Treasurer. Commit­
teemen are Mr. Carl Le Mont, Mr. Russell Todd; Dr. 
Fredric Conklin, Capt. Porter Lewis, USN, Lt. Robert 
Litke, USN; LCDR Don Huddleston, USN; 1st Lt. 
Spencer Schedler, USAF; and Maj. Gen. Charles 
Schott, USAF.

The Rev. and Mrs. Richard H. Baker (Elizabeth) 
have four children—Peter, Katherine, Margaret, and 
Richard. The fourth was born on Guam at the U.S. 
Naval Hospital where the Rev. Mr. Baker is also an 
Associate Member of the Staff. Before coming to 
Guam, Mr. Baker was the Vicar of St. Martin’s in the 
Fields, Grand Island, N.Y.
Greet New Son

The Reverend and Mrs. Richard H. Baker, of 
Agana, Guam, are the proud parents of a son, Richard 
Andrew, born October 17th. He is their second son 
and fourth child. W e welcome him into our Diocesan 
Family very affectionately and extend congratulations 
to the entire family.
Greatly Improved

Mrs. Gerald P. Loweth, w ife of The Ven. Gerald 
P. Loweth, of Holy Apostles Church, Hilo, is greatly 
improved after a critical illness with meningitis. We 
thank God for her recovery and pray that she will 
soon be entirely well.
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St. P h ilip ’s C hurch , M a ili, O ahu. A t th e  r ig h t, is p ic tu red  
the in te rio r o f th e  C hu rch  and th e  b u ild ings  m oved on to 
the property  fo r  S unday School classroom s.

St. Philip’s Church, Maili, Dedicated
On Sunday, November 3rd, the Bishop dedicated 

the new St. Philip’s Church, Maili, Oahu. H e was 
assisted by the Reverend David P. Coon, Vicar. The 
new church was completed on the first of October.

The first services for this congregation were held  
in the Waianae school building by Diocesan clergy 
and the Vicar of St. Stephen’s Church, Wahiawa. 
Finding it difficult to go to W ahiawa from Waianae, 
Makaha and Nanakuli, the people in these areas asked 
the Bishop to provide services for them at Waianae. 
Through the kindness of Mr. and Mrs. Fred Wong, a 
portion of their property at the corner of Farrington 
Highway and Milikami Street, Maili, was provided 
for a temporary structure, until we can acquire our 
own land. The congregation has worked hard to com­
plete the chapel and to move some buildings, given 
to us by the Navy, onto the property for Sunday 
School rooms.

Members of the Bishop’s Committee are: Mr. Paul 
Miller, Senior Warden; Mr. Arthur Liu, Junior Ward­
en; Mrs. Arthur Liu, Secretary, Mr. Robert Davidson, 
Treasurer; and Mr. D. L. Baker, Mr. George Compton, 
Mrs. Dixie Jones and Mrs. Edith Sweet.

The Glazcbrooks Leave Honolulu
The Rev. and Mrs. Donald Glazebrook, who have 

spent several months in Honolulu, left for the main­
land on November 9th. W e extend our sincere Aloha

tw v  1

to them and wish to express appreciation for all 
that they did to help the church while here. Dr. Glaze­
brook took many services for us, where there were 
vacancies, and preached for several of our clergy.

Cathedral Thanksgiving Market
The Annual Thanksgiving Market at St. Andrew’s 

Cathedral will be held on Tuesday, November 26th. 
This will provide everyone with an opportunity to 
purchase many delectable things for the Thanksgiving 
dinner and many beautiful gifts for Christmas. 
Place this date on your calendar as an important one.

To Head Committee for 
Juvenile Delinquency

The Rev. Dr. Shelton Hale Bishop has been elected  
to head a civic committee to aid in the elimination of 
juvenile delinquency in the Islands. He has had 
much experience in this type of work as rector of St. 
Philip’s Church, New York City, so should render 
invaluable service to the community as head of the 
committee.
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M r. R ich ard  C h in g  b rea k in g  th e  ground fo r S t. E liz a b e th ’s 
P arish  R ecto ry . T h e  Rev. Canon W a i On S him  and th e  
R ev. Canon P au l R. S ava n ac k  w atch  th e  b rea k in g  o f ground  
w ith  m em bers o f S t. E liz a b e th ’s D ay School.

Ground Breaking Service at 
St. Elizabeth’s

On Monday, October. 14, the Reverend Canon 
Paul R. Savanack, acting for the Bishop, had the 
Ground Breaking service at St. Elizabeth’s Parish for 
the new rectory, which is under construction. He was 
assisted by the Rev. Canon W ai On Shim, Rector of 
the church and Mr. Richard C. Ching, Chairman of the 
Building Committee.

UTO Fall Ingathering
Mrs. Willard Buscher, Diocesan Chairman of the 

Woman’s Auxiliary United Thank Offering, has an­
nounced that Sunday, November 24th, all women will 
place their thank offerings on the altars of our 
churches.

We, who have so generously received of this offer­
ing, should as generously give so that the fine work 
of the women of our Church can be extended to many 
areas where assistance is needed.

Returns from the Meeting of the 
House of Bishops

The Bishop returned on October 26th from attend­
ing the meeting of the House of Bishops and from a 
speaking tour in four dioceses — Kentucky, Rhode 
Island, Iowa and North Dakota. When in San Fran­
cisco, he went to Berkeley to the Church Divinity 
School of the Pacific to visit with our seminarians.

H e also spoke at the Synod of the 6th Province, 
held in Omaha, Nebraska, on October 16th.
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T h e  Bishop preachin g  a t C onsecration  S erv ice  a t S t. Luke's 
C hu rch , H on o lu lu .

St. Luke’s Church Consecrated
The fiftieth year of the founding of St. Luke’s 

Church was marked by the Consecration of the Church 
by the Bishop on Sunday, October 27th, at 9 a.m. He 
was assisted by the Vicar, the Reverend Paul Kim, and 
a former Vicar, the Reverend Stephen E. T. Kim, now 
Vicar of St. Columba’s Church, Paauilo, Hawaii, who 
was the guest of St. Luke’s Church for the occasion.

A booklet, “50 Years of St. Luke’s Church” was 
published for the anniversary. Following the service 
of Consecration a delicious luncheon was served in 
the Parish Hall.

The congregation of St. Luke’s Church was 
founded by Korean immigrants who left Korea on 
December 22, 1902, and arrived in Honolulu on 
January 13, 1903. They formed a group known as 
Chun Heung Hyup Hoi (Lightning Flourishing As­
sociation) so that in a strange land they could find 
fellowship. They met in a rented room near the corner 
of South Beretania Street and Alexander Street. The 
members numbered about fifty. Mrs. E. C. Perry and 
Deaconess Sands volunteered to teach the members 
English and paved the way for interesting them in 
attending St. Elizabeth’s Church in 1907. Heading 
their group was Mr. Sang Ha Park.

Thus was the beginning of a congregation that 
has grown from rooms to a very humble chapel con­
verted from a cottage on the grounds of St. Elizabeth’s 
Church, and now their own beautiful church of today. 
W e pray that God will strengthen them in their work 
and worship together.

I cannot tell any man how much to give to church 
and charity in dollars and cents, for I do not know 
that much about any man; but I do not have the 
slightest hesitation in asking a man to give as God has 
given to him, which is the principle of proportionate 
giving or tithing.

—by the Rt. Rev. Richard Emrich, S.T.D.
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The Rev. Peyton C ra ig h ill is in s ta lled  as V ic a r  o f A ll 
Souls C hurch, O k in aw a , by th e  R ev. Canon W ill ia m  C. 
H effner.

Ilcads Department of Christian 
Education

The Rev. William R. Grosh Vicar of Calvary 
Church, Kaneohe, has been appointed head of the 
Department of Christian Education on the Bishop and 
Council, to fill the unexpired term of the Rev. Gerald
G. Gilford, who left for the mainland to accept a call 
in the Diocese of Southern Ohio.

Episcopal Church Laymen’s League 
Annual Training Conference:

The Laymen’s League of the Episcopal Church in 
Hawaii held its annual fall conference at the Episcopal 
Conference Center, Mokuleia on Saturday and Sun­
day, October 12th and 13th.

Key laymen from each parish and mission met and 
planned laymen’s activities for the coming months.

K. L. Ching, diocesan keyman, who recently re­
turned from the provincial conference of laymen of 
the Pacific or Eighth Province area, was the leader. 
He was assisted by Mr. Titus Fong, who also attended 
the conference.

The main topic on the agenda was: “How Can the 
Laymen Help Their Parishes to be More Truly the 
People of God?”

The Reverend Paul M. Wheeler, of St. Clement’s 
Church, was the chaplain. H e officiated at the services 
and celebrated Holy Communion at a Corporate 
Service.

In the last eight years the number of licensed lay 
readers in the Episcopal Church has doubled, from 
5,218 in 1948 to 10,587 in 1956. The number of candi­
dates for Holy Orders in the Episcopal Church has 
also doubled in the same eight years; 363 in 1948, 
748 in 1956.

T a iw a n  s ta ff o f c le rg y  and w o rke rs . Seated, le ft  to r ig h t 
a re : M r. P. C. W an g , lay  re a d e r; th e  Rev. John R. Caton, 
in charge of our w o rk ; M r. H e rb e rt С. M . Y eu , lay  read er. 
S tan d in g , th e  R ev. R ich ard  S. K . Y oh and th e  Rev. M a rk  
Y . L. M a.

Bishop’s C o m m ittee , Grace C hurch , T a in a n , T a iw a n , le ft  
to r ig h t: M rs. M ila n  S. P. H si, M rs . Feng M ei W an g , Judge  
H. C. Chu, M r. С. C. Chu, M r. М . C. Chea.

C on gregatio n  of G race C hurch , T a in a n , T a iw a n  w ith  th e  
Rev. John R. C aton, C en ter, w ho is in charge o f ou r w o rk . 
T h e  Rev. M a rk  M a, le ft and th e  Rev. R ich ard  Y oh r ig h t are  
shown also.
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M r. and M rs . Jam es M. T a y lo r , H a w a ii P re p a ra to ry  A cad em y, K am u e la , H a w a ii, e n te rta in  boys in th e ir  hom e a t a story 
hour. M rs . T a y lo r  serves th e  boys apples w h ile  th e ir  H e a d m a s te r reads to  th em .

In Appreciation
All too often laymen in the church do much that 

receives little recognition for the contribution they 
make to the life and work of the church. W e would 
like to have our members know of one man who has 
done muchs without such recognition. He is Dr. 
Joseph Lucas, of St. Stephen’s Church, Wahiawa. 
Since the beginning of our church camps at Mokuleia, 
he has made daily trips to the camp to check on the 
children to see if medical attention should be given to 
them. He has become a very beloved part of the camp 
life of the youngsters. He has done this because of 
his concern and without remuneration. W e are deeply 
indebted to him because we know that our children 
are in good hands and are well cared for at all times.

Conducts Preaching Missions
The Rev. Shelton Hale Bishop, S.T.D., has con­

ducted preaching missions for the churches on the 
Island of Hawaii, at Holy Apostles Church, Hilo, at 
St. Christopher’s Church, Kailua, and will have one 
at All Saints Church, Kapaa, Kauai, for all the churches 
on Kauai, the week of November 24th.
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Youth Conference to he Held
St. Clement’s Parish and St. Peter’s Parish will 

join in a Youth Conference at Mokuleia, on November 
29-30, which will be a Bible Study Conference. The 
Reverend Paul M. Wheeler, Rector of St. Clement’s 
Church, and the Rev. J. Robert Jones, Rector of St. 
Peter’s Church, will lead the group discussions.

Entered Novitiate
Friends of Miss Elda Smith, who was at one time 

an assistant at St. Mark’s Church, Honolulu, having 
come here after many years as a missionary in China, 
and who later joined the staff of the Hawaii Episcopal 
Academy, Kamuela, Hawaii, will be interested to learn 
that she was clothed as a Novice of the Community 
of the Transfiguration on Sunday, October 9th, in 
Bethany Home, Glendale, Ohio. She has taken the 
name of Sister Magdalene.

Sister M agdelene’s good friend from China, Miss 
Rose Lee, who taught at Epiphany Day School for 
some time, and who left about three years ago to enter 
the Sisterhood of the Transfiguration, is now Sister 
Rebecca Louise.
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Christm as Trees
The young people of Holy Nativity Church will 

welcome orders for Christmas trees. They will be 
available after December 15th. Any desiring trees may 
call 32-131. Money from the sale of the trees will 
go toward the building fund for the Youth Center that 
will soon be under construction.

Elder’s Day Dinner
St. Peter’s Church, Honolulu, honored the elders 

i of the parish with a dinner on Sunday, October 20th,
! in the parish hall. The Very Reverend Paul Roberts

|. was the guest speaker for the occasion. Entertainment
1 was provided by the men of the parish. This is an
I annual event looked forward to with great anticipation
I by the elders and members of the parish. Mr. Robert

I
 Wong was the Master of Ceremonies and introduced

the guests.

To Hold Bazaar and Carnival
I St. John’s-by-the-Sea Mission, Kahaluu, Oahu, will
" hold a Bazaar and Carnival on November 22nd to 

raise money for the construction of a Community Hall 
to be known as Hookano Memorial Pavilion. It will 
be in memory of Charles Hookano, who was for many 
years a devout and beloved Lay Reader in the Mission.

Conducts Services on Molokai
The Reverend Robert Stretch, a member of the 

faculty at lolani School in the Department of Chris­
tian Education, conducted services of Holy Com­
munion at Grace Church, Molokai, and at the Leper 
Colony at Kalaupapa, on October 27th.

Returns To Honolulu For A Visit
The Rev. Y. Sang Mark, former Rector of St. Peter’s 

Church, Honolulu, until his retirement in 1951, re­
turned to Honolulu for a six-weeks’ vacation with 
friends and relatives. He has lived in Los Angeles 
since 1954 with his wife, who is the sister of the Rev. 
Wai On Shim. H e has been helping at St. John’s 
Episcopal Church in that city and at the John W esley 
County Hospital as Chaplain. His many friends in 
Hawaii were pleased to see him and his wife.

Christian Social Relations
The National Council of our Church urges that 

foreign students attending the University of Hawaii 
be extended a welcome by our members. Especially 
would they desire members to invite them into their 
homes for the holidays. The Rev. Canon Norman C. 
Aidt will be happy to provide names to any desiring 
them.

— Cou rtesy  H o n o lu lu  Advertiser

D aily Services a re  held in th e  C hapel fo r  th e  A cad em y boys by th e  V ic a r  of St. Jam es C hu rch , T h e  R ev. George F. 
H ayashi. H ere  th e y  are  shown leavin g  th e  C hapel.
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G race Chapel a t T a in a n , T a iw a n , set up in a hom e of one 
of th e  fa m ilie s . T h is  is our new est w o rk  on T a iw a n .

A Beloved Saint of the Diocese Dies
Mr. Thomas John Hollander, one of the most 

beloved members of the Diocesan Family passed into 
life eternal on October 15, 1957, after a short illness 
at Queen’s Hospital.

He came to Honolulu in 1932, after serving 38 years 
as a missionary in Hong Kong and Shanghai, China. 
He served as our Diocesan Treasurer for twenty-five 
years, retiring at the age of 80 years. At that time he 
was given the Bishop’s Distinguished Service Cross 
for his outstanding contribution to the Diocese. He 
would have been 93 years of age on November 14th.

After serving as Diocesan Treasurer, he continued 
to live in his small cottage in Emma Square and the 
Cathedral Close. He became the “Diocesan Treasure”, 
slipping into the offices in the Cathedral Close to see 
if there were ways in which he might help. He was 
a messenger of the Lord, as he liked to term himself, 
doing important things for everyone that would have 
taken them away from the busyness of the offices.

His gentle, sweet way brought light into the lives 
of everyone. He was never known to speak an unkind 
word to anyone. He befriended the friendless, holding 
out his hand to those who had fallen or would fall— 
never too busy to stop and care for the most unfor­
tunate of souls. He let his light so shine that he 
walked among us as a true example of our Lord. He 
lived so for God and His Son that his sole purpose in 
life was to exemplify Them.

He was born in Sweden and was the survivor of 
seven sons of a Swedish farm family, who emigrated to 
Nebraska in the early 1890’s. W hen he left Sweden 
with his brothers at the age of 18, he spoke only his 
native tongue. He learned English in Nebraska and

in China he mastered the Mandarin Chinese, in which 
language he also sang.

Funeral services were held in St. Clement’s Church, 
conducted by the Very Rev. James S. Cox, Dean of St. 
Andrew’s Cathedral, and the Rev. Paul M. Wheeler, 
Rector of St. Clement’s Church. The clergy on Oahu, 
in tribute to his life as a “living Apostle” were in pro­
cession, vested. His ashes were buried in the Chapel 
of Peace, at St. Clement’s Church, with those of his 
wife.

Our deep sympathy is extended to his daughter, 
Mrs. Grace Littlejohn, and to his daughter-in-law, Mrs. 
Walter J. Hollander.

May he go from strength to strength in the service 
of Him, for whom he dedicated his life. W e know that 
he was one of whom it can truly be said, “W ell done, 
thou good and faithful servant.”

For Parents Only
THINKING that three hours at any movie are 

harmless for the child, but that two hours of Church 
and Sunday School are too much for his nervous sys­
tem, is just bad thinking.

GIVING him a nickel for the collection and fifty 
cents for the movies not only shows a parent’s sense 
of values, but is also likely to produce a proportionate 
giver.

LETjpING him listen to several hours of radio and 
television thrillers a day with no time for a short prayer 
and a few  Bible verses is criminal unbalance.

BEING careful that Junior has his week day les­
sons, and caring not that he knows his Sunday school 
lessons make for spiritual illiteracy.

SAYING that a child must make his own decisions 
as to whether or not he should go to Church or to what 
Church, is shirking parental responsibility.

W H EN FATHER spends Sunday morning in mow­
ing the lawn, cleaning the garden, washing the car or 
playing golf, his sons are left to walk alone.

W H EN PARENTS idle away Sunday morning in 
reading the paper or listening to the radio, while 
brother and sister are sent by themselves to church, 
something happens to the children’s evaluation of 
church attendance.

WHAT A MAN SOWETH -  THAT SHALL HE 
ALSO REAP. — Selected.
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SU C C E SSO R  T O  T H E  A N G L IC A N  C H U R C H  C H R O N IC L E  

O fficial o rg an  of the  M issio n ary  D is tr ic t  of H o n o lu lu  of the 
P ro te s ta n t  Ep iscopal C hurch  in the  U n ited  S ta tes 

E n te red  as second-class m a tte r  F e b ru a ry  14, 1908, a t  th e  p o st office a t  
H o n o lu lu , H aw aii, u n d e r th e  A ct of M arch  3, 1879.

T H E  R T . R E V . H A R R Y  S. K E N N E D Y , D .D .,  S .T .D .,  E d i t o r  
K A T H E R IN E  M . M O R T O N ,

A S S IS T A N T  E D IT O R

T H E  H A W A IIA N  C H U R C H  C H R O N IC L E  is pub lished  once in  each 
m onth , except J u ly  and  A u g u st. T h e  su b scrip tio n  price is O ne  D o lla r  a 
year. R em ittan ces , orders and  o th er business com m u n ica tio n s  shou ld  be a d ­
dressed to  B ishop’s Office, Q ueen  E m m a Square , H o n o lu lu  13, Т .  H .

Page E ight H awaiian C hurch Chronicle

vC
T




